ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 8, 2016
1:12 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes, Co-Chair
Representative Loui se Stutes
Representative Matt C aman
Representative Dan Otiz

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Charisse Ml lett
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak

COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 319
"An Act relating to registration fees for snownbiles and off-
hi ghway vehicles."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 319

SHORT TI TLE: SNOWDBI LE REG STRATI ON FEES
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) TILTON

02/ 19/ 16 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 16 (H) TRA, FIN
03/ 08/ 16 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY TI LTON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prine sponsor, presented HB 319.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vi sion of Mtor Vehicles (DW)
Department of Adm nistration (DOA)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 8, 2016



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided testinony related to HB 319.

CHRI STOPHER CLARK, Staff

Representative Cathy Tilton

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on HB 319 on behalf
of Representative Tilton, prime sponsor.

BEN ELLI'S, Director

Di vision of Parks & Qutdoor Recreation

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 319.

DAN MAYFI ELD, Chair

SnowlRAC Advi sory Board

Bi g Lake, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 319.

KEVIN H TE, President

Al aska State Snownobil e Associ ation (ASSA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 3109.

JAVES SQUYRES
Del t ana, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 319.

SCOIT LAPI ENE
Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 3109.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:12: 01 PM

CO- CHAI R SHELLEY HUGHES cal |l ed the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:12 p.m Represent ati ves C aman,
Otiz, Foster, and Hughes were present at the call to order.

Representative Stutes arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 319- SNOWOBI LE REG STRATI ON_FEES

1:12: 31 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 8, 2016



CO CHAI R HUGHES announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 319 "An Act relating to registration fees for
snownmobi | es and of f - hi ghway vehicles."

1: 13: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY TILTON, Al aska State Legislature, explained
that HB 319 would increase the two-year snowrobile fee from $10
to $20 and provide an option to pay a six-year fee at a
di scounted rate of $50. She indicated that in Alaska' s current
fiscal climate, it was refreshing for the proposal to have cone
from sone of the user groups thenselves. She relayed that
snowmobi |l e organi zations view the proposed legislation as a
means to inprove developnent and maintenance of snowrobile
trails and pronote snownobile safety. She explained that
current snowrobile fees generate up to $250,000 per year for the
snowmobile trail devel opnent program Snownobile Trail Advisory
Council (SnowlTRAC), which is nanaged by the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR), Division of Parks & Qutdoor Recreation

She stated that user groups want to keep the funds avail able and
are willing to do their part to ensure the continuation of the
program

REPRESENTATI VE TILTON related that according to a recent report
prepared by legislative research, there are 22 states wth
snowmobil e registration fees and, of those, Alaska and Oregon
have the |owest fees. She recounted that prior to working for
the legislature, she was involved in the snownbile industry,
and she offered that there are different types of wuser groups,
di sci plines, and opinions. She indicated that Kevin Hite,
President of the Al aska State Snownobile Association (ASSA), and
Dan Mayfield of SnowlRAC would provide testinony in support of
HB 319. She said Ben Ellis from DNR woul d di scuss how the fund
is used and Any Erickson of the Departnent of Mtor Vehicles
(DW) woul d explain the fiscal note and fee coll ection.

1:15:16 PM

CO CHAIR FOSTER remarked that it had been a while since he had
pur chased a snow nmachi ne, but that he did not recollect paying a
regi stration fee. He inquired whether the fee is included in
the purchase of a snow machine and asked for clarification that
the $10 fee is good for two years.

1: 16: 56 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 8, 2016



REPRESENTATIVE TILTON replied affirmatively and explained that
the fee, as currently in statute, is on a two-year renewal
schedule and generally <charged at the point of sale at
deal erships. In response to a followup question from Co-Chair
Foster, she indicated that renewals are nmailed out every two
years, simlar to vehicle or trailer registrations.

1:17:15 PM

COCHAIR HUGHES requested that Any FErickson discuss the
regi stration renewal process and the response rate for renewal
notifications.

AMY ERICKSON, Director, Dvision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Administration (DOA), said she was uncertain as to
the renewal rate, but offered that of the approximtely 39,000
regi stered snow machines, 25,000 have a 2-year registration,
7,500 have a 4-year registration, and 6,500 have a 6-year
regi stration

1: 20: 27 PM

CO CHAIR FOSTER inquired whether the renewal notifications are
sent to everyone in rural Al aska. He explained that he owns a
snow rmachine but doesn' t remenber receiving a renewal
notification in the past.

1: 20: 49 PM

M5. ERICKSON responded that it is required that snow nachine
owners register their snow machi nes.

CO CHAI R FOSTER commented that he was unaware of the requirenent
to register and offered that nost rural Alaskans are |likely
unawar e of the requirenent.

MS. ERI CKSON responded that if a snow machine is not currently
registered to its owner then there is no way for the DW to send
the owner a renewal notification.

1:21:35 PM
CO CHAI R HUGHES suggested that a private party sale would likely
not involve the registration fee. She asked whether the

registration is conpleted at the time of the original purchase
froma deal ership.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 8, 2016



M5 ERICKSON replied that is correct, and she stated that if
deal erships register the snow machine, then the DW would know
about it, but in the case of a personal sale, the DW would not
necessarily know about it because there is no certificate of
title.

1: 22: 09 PM

CO CHAIR FOSTER recounted that he purchased his snow nachine
brand new, hasn't sold it, and it has always been registered in

his nane. He stated that he purchased it in 2003, and he
suggested that by now he probably should have received six or
seven renewal notifications by nmail, yet he has not. He

expl ai ned that he was inquiring because he was trying to figure
out the structure of the renewal requirenents and how it could
affect rural Al askans.

1:22: 50 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES asked how long the renewal requirenents have
been in effect and shared that when she lived in Fort Yukon, her
primary node of transportation was a snow nmachi ne.

M5 ERI CKSON stated that the statute was effected in 1998.
1: 23: 38 PM

CHRI STOPHER CLARK, Staff, Representative Cathy Tilton, Al aska
State Legislature, drew nmenbers' attention to the docunents in
the commttee packet Ilisting the nunmber of registered snow
machi nes in each community throughout the state. He pointed out
that in Co-Chair Foster's town there are only 45 registered
machi nes, and he suggested that he may not be the only person
not receiving a renewal notice.

CO- CHAI R FOSTER specul ated that nore than 45 snow machi nes were
sold in None in the |ast year. He offered that it is likely
that the registration paperwork is handl ed appropriately by the
deal ers, but he estimated that there are 2,000 snow machines in
t he region. He asked whether any of the revenue acquired from
registrations had been distributed to rural Alaska, as the
trails referenced thus far were generally in South-Central
Al aska or nore urban areas.

1: 25: 10 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 8, 2016



BEN ELLIS, Director, D vision of Parks & Qutdoor Recreation,
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), responded that the
majority of Snownobile Trails Advisory Council (SnowlTRAC) funds,
which are registration fees transferred from DW to the Division
of Parks & Qutdoor Recreation, are distributed primarily to the
urban areas to offset costs for trail groom ng. He menti oned
that over the last three years he has encouraged grant
recipients from off of the road system to apply for safety and
education grants for the purpose of trail markers between
villages or simlar inprovenents. Three years ago, DNR received
a request for, and provided a $15,000 grant, to a village but
the program was never executed. He explained that it was a
rei nbursable grant: a city, conmunity, or club receives a
project go-ahead, receipts for the project are retained, and
upon project conpletion the receipts are reinbursed. He stated
that for the next two years DNR focused on getting grants for
si gnage, education, and energency response to rural Al aska, but
did not have any applicants. Finally last year, after the noney
has been sitting idle for three years, the division rolled it
back into the trail groom ng pool. He stated that SnowlRAC is
and was designed as a statewide program and DNR encourages
safety and education grant applications from|ocal es outside the
urban areas, with little or no response.

1: 27: 48 PM

CO-CHAIR FOSTER stated that his initial inclination is to
support the registration fee increase from $10 to $20 for people
who woul d be benefitting from groonmed trails, and that perhaps a
Bush exenption would be appropriate, if none of the funds are
benefitting rural Alaska. Trail marking and energency response,
are very inportant to people who use snow machines in rural
Al aska, and it may be a matter of inproving program awareness to
out | yi ng areas.

1: 28: 54 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES nentioned that there had been several recent
tragic events related to aval anches and asked if any funds are
col l ected specifically for search and rescue.

1:29:23 PM
MR. ELLIS answered that there were no funds specifically for
search and rescue through the DNR snow nmachine grant program

al t hough the agency does provide snow nachi ne ranger service at
Hat cher Pass and other |ocations. The rangers are all qualified

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 8, 2016



in CPR and have received training in advanced search and rescue
t echni ques.

1: 30: 03 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES asked how nuch is spent on search and rescue
related to snow nachi ne users statew de

MR. ELLIS deferred response, and offered to provide further
i nformati on.

1: 30: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN sought clarification that the revenue
generated by the snow machine fees is directed to the genera
fund and, although there are prograns that allocate funds for
purposes such as trails, there is no requirenent that an
increase in revenue would be distributed to the snow nachine
program

1: 31: 29 PM

MR. ELLIS replied that Representative C aman was correct in his
under st andi ng. He explained that this bill would increase snow
machi ne registration fees, but there is not currently, nor would
there be a nexus between increased fees and funding for the
SnowTRAC program The noney collected by DW would be slated
for the general fund, and subsequently a request nust be
subnmitted to the governor or the legislature for the D vision of
Parks & OQutdoor Recreation to have receipt authority for a
certain anount of noney. He further explained that in the
fiscal year 2016 (FY16) budget, the Division of Parks & Qutdoor
Recreation was slated to receive up to $250,000 in snow nachi ne
registration fees [for SnowlRAC]; however, the division has
never received the full amunt of the receipt authority and
generally they receive around $200,000 for the program He
noted that doubling the fee would not necessarily result in a
doubling of the division's receipt authority for the program

1: 33: 06 PM

MR ELLIS, in response to a question from Co-Chair Hughes,
clarified that unless the allocation is witten into statute, it
woul d be the legislature's decision each year whether or not to
support the anount designated in the governor's budget. In the
instance that it was excluded fromthe governor's budget, as was

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 8, 2016



the case the previous vyear, it would be the legislature's
prerogative whether or not to fund it, and at what |evel.

1: 34:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked if receipt authority guarantees that
all fee revenue is earnmarked for and passed directly to the
programor if the legislature actually appropriates the funds.

MR. ELLIS stated his understanding that the revenue generated
has never exceeded the amount of the programs receipt
authority. He elaborated that the noney is transferred into the
general fund and the receipt authority for the program allows
those funds to be transferred to the division's capital fund
where it is "pigeonhol ed” for the SnowlTRAC program

MR. CLARK added that all funds are subject to appropriation.
Statute provides authorization, but the legislature is charged
with affecting the appropriation. The fiscal note, available in
the commttee packet, stipulates that any revenue collected in
excess of current receipt authority is to remain in the genera
f und.

1: 36: 11 PM

CO CHAI R HUGHES asked about the price range of snow machi ne fees
i nposed by other states, and whether the primary use is for
trail maintenance.

1: 36: 37 PM

MR. CLARK stated that 22 states and 5 Canadi an provinces have
snownobi | e fees. Al aska and Oregon have the |owest fee at $10
bi ennially, and New York has the highest fees at $100 annually.
He declined to speculate on the primary use of the funds.

1:37: 20 PM

CO CHAI R FOSTER noted that SnowlRAC is statew de program and the
rural conmunities are eligible to apply for a share of the
f unds. He said he would inform rural communities of the
opportunity and asked about the level of effort that has been
put into notifying Bush areas about the program

1: 38: 04 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 8, 2016



MR ELLIS stated that the snow machine trail coordinator has

conducted outreach to Buckland, Kotzebue, Bethel, and other
areas to encourage subm ssion of grant applications; however,
despite interest, applications have not been subntted. He

stated that the division would be interested in working with Co-
Chair Foster's office to dissemnate information about the
program t hroughout rural comunities, noting that trail markers
and safety training could save lives in areas that use snow
machi ne routes as hi ghways.

CO CHAIR FOSTER stated his appreciation for the efforts nade by
the Division of Parks & Qutdoor Recreation. He expressed
excitement about the prospect of adding tripod trail markers,

village by village throughout the state, as there are severa

accounts of fatalities resulting from getting |ost along snow
machi ne routes during inclement weather. He offered that perhaps
there could be an anendnent regarding reporting requirenents,

specifically listing the annual distribution anobunts for each
conmuni ty.

1: 40: 27 PM

MR. ELLIS stated that distribution information is available on
the division's webpage. The information available includes:
al l ocation ampunts, conmunities receiving allocations, and use
of the allocation. He explained that the division distributes a
press rel ease each year.

MR. ELLIS further explained that the SnowlRAC Advisory Board
reviews the grant requests, which are thoroughly discussed and
vetted, prior to meking a recomendation to the director's
office. M. Ellis said he usually approves the recomendati ons.
The only exception in recent history was that no comunities
applied for the rural safety program funds, dollars which were
subsequently rolled back into the snow nmachi ne grant program an
action the division would likely take again in the future. He
noted that it is inportant to get the nmessage out that the funds
are avail able, and the division would continue to do its part.

1:41:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN i nqui red about other states' fees and what
is the average fee for snow machi ne regi stration.

1:42: 12 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -9- March 8, 2016



MR CLARK replied: Miine has a $46 annual fee and New York has
a $100 resident and non-resident fee that is reduced to $45 for
menbers of the New York Snow Mbile Association; Mnnesota has a
$78.50 three-year "trail use" fee; Mintana has a one-time fee of
$60.50 and a nulti-year rental fee schedul e; Nebraska has a $200
manuf acturer registration fee; and Washington has a $50 annual
fee for snow nachines less than 30 years old and $12 for those
30-plus years old. He added that Newfoundland has a $23
Canadi an dollar (CAD) annual fee and Quebec has a $92.90 (CAD)
annual fee. He did not offer an average rate.

1:43: 25 PM

CO CHAIR HUGHES asked how the nine nenbers of the SnowlRAC
Advi sory Board are selected and whether rural residents are
represented/ seated on the commttee.

1:43:52 PM

MR, ELLIS replied that the SnowlRAC Advi sory Board is appointed
by the director of the Division of Parks & Qutdoor Recreation.
Two of the advisory boards in the division are appointed by the
governor, one is appointed by the commi ssioner, and the other
sevent een advisory boards are appointed by the director. He
recalled that a None resident was seated, but resigned; thus, no
rural resident is currently seat ed.

COCHAIR HUGHES inquired whether there were any regulations
dictating the geographic conposition of the SnowlRAC Advisory
Boar d.

MR, ELLIS replied that the SnowlTRAC Advisory Board has byl aws
and operating procedures that discuss diversity on the board,
but there is no statutory requirenent. He said the board was
established by the fornmer director of Parks & Qutdoor
Recreation, in 1998, in conjunction with the inplenmentation of
t he snow machi ne regi stration fee.

1:46:17 PM

DAN MAYFI ELD, Chair, SnowlTRAC Advi sory Board, stated that HB 319
was a sinple bill that could have a great inpact on trail
safety, education, access, developnent, groom ng, signage, and
the econom es of conmunities that depend on wi nter recreational
visitation from snow machi ne and other trail users. He said the
af orenenti oned goals are the subject of the work of SnowlRAC.
He infornmed the commttee that SnowlRAC is the only revenue-

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 10- March 8, 2016



neutral, self-funded, user-based program in Al aska; all funding
is derived fromthe registration of snow nachines. He expl ai ned
that available funding has fallen short of the anount necessary
to sustain the goals of the program and SnowTRAC is currently
operating in survival node. The organi zation has set aside
goal s beyond trail groom ng, in hopes that funding opportunities
may be available in the future. He recounted that over the |ast
three years, funding requests have ranged from a high of
$373,551 to a low of $360,831, while available funding has
ranged from $204,000 to $278,000, far less than necessary to
neet demand.

VR. MAYFI ELD offered that HB 319 would restore the
sustainability of the SnowlTRAC program and allow it to neet the
demands of trail users at little or no cost to the state. He
posed the question to the conmttee: "Wat better investnent can
you make in tough financial tinmes than to let users adequately
fund their own progranf" He acknow edged that all |egislation
recei ves sone opposition; however, it's worth considering that
over 85 percent of all registered users cone from conmunities
that either directly benefit from or have the potential to

benefit from the funding of services that the bill would
provi de. He clarified that the other 15 percent of users are
i mportant and SnowTRAC will continue to make strong overtures to

inform rural Al askans of available funding. He enphasized that
SnowTRAC is a statewide program and it's sonmething that they
want to continue on a statew de basis.

MR. MAYFI ELD requested that the conmttee consider increasing
recei pt authority for the SnowlTRAC program He reiterated that
the SnowTRAC is an inclusive group that celebrates the successes
of all snow machi ne advocates and, accordingly, rural Alaska is
very inportant to the program He related that one of
SnowlTRAC s original plans was to develop a statewide trail
network, a vision that he said it still enbraces. He surm sed
that it would ultimately conme to fruition, but that it would
take a significant anount of time to build. He discl osed that
he 1is the president of Big Lake Trails, a 501(c)(3)
organi zation; President of the Big Lake Chanber of Conmerce; and
an assenbly nenber in the Matanuska-Susitna (Mat-Su) Vall ey.

1:51:17 PM
CO CHAIR FOSTER stated that he was inclined to agree with the
need to increase receipt authority for the program He asked

whet her anyone on the board could be considered sem -rural, for
exanpl e fromjust outside of Mat- Su.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 8, 2016



1: 52: 15 PM

MVR. MAYFIELD replied that there is representation from
Fai r banks, Anchorage, Mat-Su, Juneau, and the Kenai Peninsul a.
He noted that although there is no representation from Western
Al aska, it is not for lack of effort.

1:53: 21 PM

KEVIN HTE, President, Alaska State Snownobile Association
(ASSA), recounted that he had the privilege of being a part of
the group that originally devel oped SnowTRAC and has watched it
progress fromits nascent stages to its current form He noted
that the program was designed with a focus on safety and
infrastructure in the state and offered that a significant
anmount of work has been invested by different groups that have
been a part of the SnowlTRAC Advi sory Board. He recalled that
the board has, in the past, filled seats with residents from
Kot zebue and ot her areas of Wstern Al aska.

MR. HTE explained that inflation has eaten away at the
avai l abl e funding and, as a result, the program has transitioned
away from sone of its original intent, which was heavily
wei ghted toward safety, including aval anche, backcountry travel,
and travel between villages. He explained that SnowlRAC has
evolved into nore of a groom ng program and he specul ated that
although it was not part of the programis original intent, it
has |ikely done nore good than any previous program initiative.
He related that snow machine users are proud that the programis
sel f - funded. He acknowl edged that there is a comrunication
issue with people living outside the dealership areas; it has
becone nmuch nore difficult to distribute the funds in a
meani ngf ul way.

MR. HTE testified in support of HB 319, and related that ASSA
views the increase in registration fees as the first step toward
statewide trail infrastructure; one of the original intents of
SnowTRAC. He stated that the association estimted that
providing a good, conprehensive statew de safety program would
cost approximately $300,000 to $320,000 per year. He asserted
that raising the registration fee and increasing the receipt
authority for the program is a good first step toward
acconplishing the goal. He stated that ASSA is very focused on
revitalizing SnowTRAC wth sonme new funding. He attested that
SnowTRAC is doing a terrific job with a small anmount of funding,
which is being spread very thin, and he acknow edged that sone

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- March 8, 2016



areas are not getting the noney they shoul d. He said a lot of
work goes into the prograns, and many of the trail grooners have
been conpleting the work on their own tine and noney. He
nmenti oned fundi ng obstacles and said that in order to change the
situation, the proposed fee increase is an absol ute necessity.

MR HTE clarified that in addition to registration fees, New
York and other New England States, inpose a trail program
sticker fee for individual counties. In sone states, it is
possible to pay an annual cost in registration fees of anywhere
from $250-$450 per vyear, when using the interconnected trail
syst ens. He explained that the funds come directly from the
user groups and the applicable agencies work together to
collectively develop statew de prograns. He stated that
Al aska's snow nachi ne organi zations intend to mmc these nodels
for future devel opnent efforts. He noted that as a result of
fee systenms, sone states have budgets of $2-$3 million for snow
machi ne prograns. He suggested that Al aska has work to do, not
just on infrastructure, but also on finding ways to fund the
infrastructure w thout putting any additional financial weight
on the state. He indicated that Al askan snow machi ne users have
al ways stepped forward to do their part and enjoyed a good
relationship with DNR and DW. He said there has never been an
i nstance where the DW collected noney that it didn't direct
back into the program and, if anything, the agency has given
nore to SnowlRAC over the years than it has received in fees

He suggested that although a fee increase is a small first step,
it 1s inperative.

2:00: 29 PM
CO- CHAI R HUGHES opened public testinony on HB 319.
2:01:30 PM

JAMES SQUYRES stated opposition to HB 319, and voiced
di sagreenent with claims in the sponsor's statenment that the

bill "enjoys support from users who are willing to pay nore for
a service they need and enjoy." He adamantly stated that he is
not willing to pay. The proposed legislation is a revenue

raising mneasure under which the fee would increase by 100
percent, and he suggested it was a distraction from the
| egislative priority of reducing the budget. He pointed out
that the Republican Party platformcalls for a limted size and
scope of governnent.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 13- March 8, 2016



MR, SQUYRES stated that the issue of snow machine fees should be
examned in its totality. He advised that many Al askans live in
renote areas and half the state is unorganized. He pointed out
that the sponsor and co-sponsor come fromthe nore organized and
ur bani zed areas of the state. He mentioned that he had run his
snow machine tw ce that day, once to bring in seasoned wood to
repl enish his cabin and once to haul green wood to split and
stack for future use. He explained that where he lives, snow
machi nes are used as a tool; there are no grooned trails. | f
residents want a groomed trail for cross-country skiing, they
tow a wei ghed-down section of chain link fence behind their snow
machi nes; they do it on their own. He related that he was not
aware of anyone in his area that has registered his/her snow
machi ne. He offered that he was synpathetic to part of Co-Chair
Foster's previous statenent, as registration of snow machines is
alnost entirely ignored in rural Al aska. He explained that
people are either wunaware that there is a requirenent to
regi ster their snow nachines or choose not to conmply with the
requirenent, as the revenue from the fees provide no service to
rural Alaska. He offered that no state program woul d ever groom
a trail near his hone, as his nearest neighbor is six mles
away. He pointed out that there are five Al aska State Troopers
assigned to an area that covers thousands of square mles;
therefore, there is very little enforcenent.

[ M. Squyres' testinony ended at this point due to technical
difficulties.]

2:05:35 PM

SCOIT LAPIENE stated support for HB 319, and said that he is
currently on the board of the |ongest standing nmulti-nodal trai

organi zation in the Matanuska-Susitna Borough; the organization
has been in place for 27 years. He related that he served on
t he SnowlTRAC Advi sory Board twi ce, once in 1999 as an appointee
of the governor and a second tinme under director Ben Ellis. He
stated his support of "pay to play,"” the principle that people
who enjoy outdoor recreation should <contribute to the
mai nt enance of that infrastructure and the fees paid should be
returned to the user conmunity. He offered that if the
registration fee was increased, then the legislature would al so
need to increase receipt authority for the SnowlRAC program
The devel opnent of winter recreation in Alaska is generations
behi nd the Lower 48, he opined, and reported that during his 20-

plus years of working on trails, he has had several
opportunities to study and discuss other states' systens and
nodes of funding. Regarding the previously expressed concern

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- March 8, 2016



about rural areas, he recalled that in the 1990s the trail board
had difficulty getting rural comunities to participate and
apply for grant noney. He offered that the grant process is
nore difficult now, as grant applicants nust be incorporated,
non-profit or gani zati ons, gover nnment bodi es, or native
cor porations. He explained that the "hurdle is high," and it
is difficult even for established organizations to neet. He
expl ained that past attenpts to engage the rural conmunities
have been thwarted by the aforenentioned difficulties.

MR. LAPI ENE suggested that there are a couple of options to

address the issue. He said the |law could be changed, but held
that this would not be preferable because he would l|ike all
citizens to be treated equally. He opined that it is

unrealistic to think registration fees would ever be enforced in
the Bush, as there is no enforcenent of notor vehicle
registration in rural areas, and he recounted having seen notor
vehicles with out-of-state plates and registrations that are 10-
years ol d. Neverthel ess, he said he believes rural communities
shoul d have the opportunity to participate in attracting noney

to inprove their systens. He nentioned that another option
would be to |everage organizations like Iron Dog, Inc. and the
Iditarod Trail Conmmittee, Inc. to sponsor grants and |ocate
workers to ensure a nore equitable distribution of funds
t hroughout the state. He said the DW database also needs
i mprovenents, as it is currently very difficult, if not

i npossi ble, to determ ne how many snow machi ne registrations are
renewal s and how many are nmade at the point of sale.

MR. LAPI ENNE nentioned as an aside that snowrobile registration
exi sted | ong before SnowlTRAC was enacted in 1998, which is also
when point-of-sale registration was added to Al aska statute. He
stated that it would be valuable to track information regarding
t he source of t he funds, whet her from point-of-sale
registrations or renewals, because it would indicate the |evel
of continued voluntary participation. He stated that he has one
significant concern with the proposed |egislation. In its
current form the bill strikes the word "snowrobile" from AS
28.10.421(d)(7) and leaves only "off-highway vehicle" in its
place. He inforned the commttee that ATVs, off-road jeeps, and
simlar vehicles are akin to snownmbiles in that although there
are point-of-sale registrations, there is no enforcenent. He
stated his belief that there should be a sumrer equivalent to
SnowTRAC for off-road notorized recreation, and a conpul sory
point-of-sale registration for off-highway vehicles is the
mechani smthat would allow that to occur.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -15- March 8, 2016



2:12:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked whether M. Lapiene was suggesting
t hat the of f-hi ghway vehicle fee should also be raised to $20.

2:13: 02 PM

MR. LAPIENE replied no, not until the legislature is willing to
establish an off-highway vehicle grant program simlar to
SnowTRAC.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN requested clarification that M. Lapiene's
exception with the renoval of the aforenmentioned |anguage is
that it would highlight the [ack of enforcenent related to other
off-road vehicle fees and that M. Lapiene would prefer that
di scussion to be delayed for now.

MR. LAPIENE replied, "That's correct."

CO CHAIR HUGHES asked whether the $10 fee for off-highway
vehicle registration is levied at the point-of-sale.

MR. LAPIENE replied that there is no conpul sory point-of-sale
registration for off-highway vehicles, and estimated that 1-2
percent of owners voluntarily register their off-highway
vehi cl es.

CO CHAI R FOSTER asked whether tribes are also eligible to apply
for grants. He noted that tribes are the organizations nost
likely to get involved in trail marking in his district.

MR. LAPI ENE def err ed.

MR ELLIS stated that tribes do fall into the category of
organi zations that are able to apply for the grant, as do non-
profits, cities, nunicipalities, and boroughs.

2:16: 22 PM

MR. SQUYRES suggested that there is a large amount of non-
conpliance surrounding the registration requirenent in rural
Al aska. There is a nullification for participation in a system
such as [SnowlRAC] when the noney is not reinvested in rural
parts of the state. He pointed out that nost of the people on
the board of SnowlTRAC reside, and the revenue is being spent, in
urban areas. He questioned why people in rural areas would want
to participate when they already cut and groomtheir own trails.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 16- March 8, 2016



He restated that he doesn't know anyone whose snow nmachine is
registered and that there are only 5 troopers for thousands of
square mles. He requested that, since the topic has been
brought before the legislature, he would |ike nenbers to take
the opportunity to repeal the section of statute entirely and
reduce the size of governnent. He suggested that if snow
machi ne program funding is an issue in organized areas, it
shoul d be specifically dealt with in those |ocales. He posited
that if Representative Foster were to secure SnowlRAC funding
for his constituents, the noney would be tied to a requirenent
for registration conpliance, which residents nmay not appreciate.

MR. SQUYRES voiced frustration with the conparisons being drawn
bet ween Al aska and other states; he said Al aska is unique. He
opi ned that Al aska should not be nodeling its prograns based on
other states, as it would result in a larger governnent, and
enphasized that +the legislature should not be increasing
financial burdens on Al askans or growi ng the size of governnent

during a financial crisis. Rural Alaska is "under attack"” by
the proposal to restructure the permanent fund. He restated his
opposition to the bill and urged commttee nenbers to repeal the

pertaining statute and get Alaska back to being "the Last
Frontier."

CO CHAI R HUGHES asked M. Squyres how the state should cover the
cost of search and rescue operations conducted in rural Al aska.

MR. SQUYRES replied that there is a responsibility to be fully
prepared that rests on the shoulders of the individual living in
or accessing renote areas. He recounted that the previous fal

he was several mles away from any help and his notorcycle
| anded on his ankle. He was injured and it was difficult for
him to get out. He stated that he had taken the initiative to
share his plans with his wife and his neighbor, thus, had he not
been able to get out on his own, he had people prepared to hel p.
He stated that anyone residing in a renote area has a

responsibility to behave l|ike the previous generations have,
which is to be prepared. He said, "If you are out in bear
country, you carry a sidearm you carry a nmeans to start a fire;
you do what you need to do to." He offered that in his
experience, many of the instances that require a rescue did not
need to occur in the first place. He acknow edged that

education is inportant, but suggested that it should cone from
parents and peers, rather than the governnent.

2:21:48 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- March 8, 2016



CO CHAI R HUGHES posed a scenario where all of the precautionary
actions taken by M. Squyres had failed and the state still had
to use resources to provide search and rescue. She asked how
t hose costs shoul d be covered.

MR. SQUYRES responded that there are consequences of making the
decision to lead an alternative lifestyle; it my come to a grim
end. He suggested that there are many people in rural areas who
would rather "live |ife" than depend on government to cone to
their rescue. He said with five Alaska State Troopers for
t housands of square nmiles, assistance conmes after the fact. He
mai ntained that it is the individual's responsibility to know
what he/she is getting into. He offered an anecdote regarding
an acquai ntance who runs 125 mles of trap line by hinself, and
has for many years, and suggested that rural residents should
aspire to a simlar level of self-reliance, take the w | derness

seriously, and "do what they need to do." He suggested that it
is absurd that noney is being spent on groomng in the nore
ur bani zed areas. He offered that there is a natural bal ance

taking place, wherein people in the urban areas are paying for
grooming and people in rural areas are nullifying [the
registration systenj. M. Squyres recounted Representative
Foster's statenent that he had never received a registration
renewal notice and didn't know anyone who had. He held that the
effect of the natural balance is to turn honest Al askan citizens
into outlaws or bandits as a result of their nonconpliance. He
indicated that the reason that limted governnment is a platform
pl ank for the Republican Party is because they appreciate self-
reliance and the responsibility of individuals.

[HB 319 was hel d over. ]

2:25:35 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:26
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- March 8, 2016



